

whether the applicant wishes to purchase a minimum order as set forth in department rules for an additional fee established in accordance with W.S. 31-3-102(a)(x) of temporary permits for issuance to purchasers of recreational vehicles at the event;

Section 2. W.S. 31-16-101(a)(xxi) and (b), 31-16-103(b)(ix) and 31-16-125(b)(i)(E) are repealed.

Section 3. This act is effective July 1, 2021.

Approved April 1, 2021.

Chapter 65

TRANSPORTATION STATUTORY AMENDMENTS-2

Original Senate File No. 107

AN ACT relating to highways and transportation; including alternative fuels in a fuel tax exemption; and providing for an effective date.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Wyoming:

Section 1. W.S. 31-18-201(s) and (t) is amended to read:

31-18-201. Commercial vehicles; registration; exemptions.

(s) Except as otherwise provided in this section, owners of commercial vehicles meeting the registration requirements of another jurisdiction and subject to registration in Wyoming and not entitled to exemption from registration or licensing under this section may, as an alternative to registration or proportional registration secure a temporary permit from the department to make a single trip into, within or out of Wyoming for a period of not to exceed ninety-six (96) hours for a fee of twenty dollars (\$20.00) for each single unit operated as a single unit or forty dollars (\$40.00) for each legal combination of units including only one (1) power unit. In lieu of the fee required by W.S. 39-17-106(g), ~~or 39-17-206(d) or 39-17-306(f)~~ for license and taxation of gasoline, ~~or diesel~~ or alternative fuels, the operator may secure a temporary permit from the department to operate in Wyoming for a period of not to exceed ninety-six (96) hours for a fee of seven dollars and fifty cents (\$7.50) for each single unit operated as a single unit or fifteen dollars (\$15.00) for each legal combination of units including only one (1) power unit.

(t) An owner of a commercial vehicle engaged in the motion picture industry whose vehicle is properly registered in another state and not entitled to the registration or licensing exemption under W.S. 31-2-224 or this section may, as an alternative to registration or proportional registration and in lieu of the fee required by W.S. 39-17-106(g), ~~and 39-17-206(d) or 39-17-306(f)~~, apply to the department for a temporary permit to operate the vehicle in Wyoming for

ninety (90) days upon payment of the appropriate fees prescribed in subsection (s) of this section. As used in this subsection, “motion picture industry” includes all filming in this state for commercial purposes including advertising. Any person operating a vehicle in Wyoming beyond the period authorized in the temporary permit is subject to a civil penalty requiring full registration of the vehicle in Wyoming for the registration year in which the violation occurred and payment of all fees required for registration.

Section 2. This act is effective July 1, 2021.

Approved April 1, 2021.

Chapter 66

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION TERMINOLOGY

Original Senate File No. 108

AN ACT relating to education; changing terminology from vocational education to career and technical education for purposes of K-12 education; specifying applicability; and providing for an effective date.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Wyoming:

Section 1. W.S. 9-1-513(b)(ix), 21-2-202(a)(xxvi), (xxvii)(intro), (A) and (xxix), 21-2-203(c)(viii), 21-2-304(a)(ii), 21-2-307, 21-3-110(a)(ii)(A) and (xxviii), 21-9-101(b)(i)(J), 21-12-101(a), 21-12-105(a)(intro), 21-13-309(m)(v)(D), 21-16-1307(b)(vii)(B), (d)(vi)(C) and (f)(ii) and 21-20-102 are amended to read:

9-1-513. School finance audits and management studies.

(b) The school finance section within the department established under subsection (a) of this section shall:

(ix) As a part of the requirements under paragraph (i) of this subsection, conduct periodic audits of ~~career-vocational~~ career and technical education information and computations submitted by districts as necessary for implementation of W.S. 21-13-309(m)(v)(D) and include audit findings in the report to the department of education required under paragraph (iv) of this subsection and the report to the legislature required under paragraph (viii) of this subsection.

21-2-202. Duties of the state superintendent.

(a) In addition to any other duties assigned by law, the state superintendent shall:

(xxvi) Establish criteria and guidelines for the identification of ~~career-vocational~~ career and technical education courses by districts, for the computation of full-time equivalent (FTE) students participating in ~~career-vocational~~ career and technical education courses and for the determination of full-time equivalent (FTE) ~~career-vocational~~ career and technical education